
CLARIFICATION NO.1 DT. 28.12.2015 TO TENDER NO. : MMTC/CO/16/5/11/2015-16/FA/MA Dated: 14-12-2015 
 

S.No. Reference as 
per  tender 
document 

Page 
No. 

As per Tender Document Query Further clarification from MMTC 

 
1 Scope of 

Work 
6 Part A : 

                                                                                                                                   
4(a): Assist and guide in conversion of Ind-AS 
compliant standalone and consolidated opening 
Balance sheet as at 01-04-2015 and related 
reconciliation statements and disclosure 
requirements under Ind-AS and audit thereof.                                                                                                                            
4(b) : Assist and guide in conversion of Ind-AS 
compliant standalone quarterly financial results 
(three quarters) for 2015-16 for comparatives . Also 
assist and guide in conversion of standalone and 
consolidated financial statements for the year 
ending March 31, 2016 and related reconciliation 
statements and disclosure requirements under Ind-
AS and audit thereof.  The consultant would also be 
required to give a certificate towards Ind-AS 
compliant financial statements.                                                                                                

(i) As per this section of 
scope of work, we 
understand that we will 
not be required to 
prepare the financials 
mentioned in the 
aforesaid section, but 
only assist and guide in 
conversion of the 
financials as per Ind-AS 
requirements. Please 
confirm.                                                                                                                                     
(ii) Please share the 
format of the certificate 
to be issued for the Ind AS 
financial statements 

As per this section of scope of work, the 
Consultant will not be required to prepare the 
financials mentioned in the aforesaid section, 
but only assist and guide in conversion of the 
financials as per Ind-AS requirements and 
financials will be prepared by MMTC officials.                                                                                                                                    
(ii) There is no specified format of the 
certificate to be issued by Consultant. The 
Consultant will be required to issue a certificate 
addressed to MMTC stating that "the financial 
statements prepared by MMTC are duly 
checked by the Consultant and the same 
conforms to the provisions of applicable Ind 
AS." 

2 Scope of 
Work 

6 Part A:   Scope of work regarding Subsidiaries , JV 
and associates  
                                                                                                                                         
4 c : For the purpose of Consolidated financial 
statements , the consultant would be required to 
advise , help and devise any template for collection 
of data from subsidiary/JV/Associates to ensure 
consolidation as per Ind-AS requirements. 

We understand that the 
scope of work relating to 
subsidiaries/JV 
/Associates would only 
include assistance in 
preparation of templates 
required to collect data 
for consolidation 
purposes but not the 
preparation of their 
financial statements. 
Financial statements of 
the subsidiaries / 
associates / joint 
ventures will be provided 
to us by MMTC and our 
role will be limited to 
consolidated financial 
statements. 

The scope of work relating to subsidiaries/JV 
/Associates would only include assistance in 
preparation of templates required to collect 
data for consolidation purposes but not the 
preparation of their financial statements. 
Financial statements of the subsidiaries / 
associates / joint ventures will be provided to 
Consultant by MMTC and Consultant’s role will 
be limited to consolidated financial statements. 
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3 Scope of 

Work 
6 Part A: 

                                                                                                                                             
3. Assist in Preparing and Review of:                                                                                                                                             
The guidelines on all Ind-AS as applicable , the 
significant accounting policies , the presentation 
structure of financial statement and grouping of 
account codes with corresponding 
addition/modification on account codes in ERP 
System and suggest all other changes to make it 
Ind-AS compliant. 

We understand that we 
will only be required to 
suggest changes in ERP 
system and not carry out 
those changes. Please 
confirm.                                                             
Moreover, Will this 
process involve the 
guidance of an IT expert. 
Please clarify.                         

The consultant will only be required to suggest 
changes in ERP system and not carry out those 
changes. The same will be carried out by 
concerned officials of MMTC.  

4 Scope of 
Work 

6 Part A:  
                                                                                                                                            
3. Assist in Preparing and Review of:                                                                             
The Consultant need to review our practice with 
reference to Fixed Assets (Componentization, 
useful life and residual value) and depreciation and 
suggest any changes to make it Ind-AS compliant 

We understand that we 
will be required to only 
review the process of 
componentization 
followed by the company 
and actual 
implementation will be 
carried out MMTC. Please 
confirm. 

The Consultant will be required to  review the 
existing system followed by the company in 
accordance with provisions of Ind AS and 
suggest any changes required as per provisions 
of Ind AS. The changes if any suggested above 
will be carried out by MMTC officials. 

5 Scope of 
Work 

7 Part B:  Training: 
                                                                                                                       
The training will cover 6 days comprehensive 
training to core team of around 30 officers on Ind 
AS. Apart from this, workshop will be conducted at 
four places for a duration of 3 days at each place. 
Hence, the total number of days for which training 
will be required will be 18 days, including training 
to core team. The consultant should provide 
training material/ brochures to each participant 
during training and a soft copy of the same should 
also be provided for further use. 

Please clarify which 
places will the training be 
held 

The training of Core Team is proposed to be 
held at New Delhi. The other 
training/workshops is proposed to be held at 
New Delhi, Mumbai, Hyderabad/Chennai & 
Bhubaneshwar. However this is subject to 
change if required. 

6 Pre-Qualifying 
Requirements 
(PQR) 

7 The bidder should have completed or in the process 
of completion of at least two jobs in respect of 
preparation / conversion / implementation / 
auditing of financial statement under IFRS / IAS / 
Ind AS of any company with net worth of at least 
Rs.500 crore during the relevant period of job. 
However, Form A requires details of Turnover of 
client 

Is this requirement 
correct or is it a typo 
error? 
Should we also furnish 
net worth of each client 
based on annual audited 
Financial statements in 
Form A? 

Instead of "Turnover of Client" in Form A, this 
should be read as Net worth of client. The 
bidder is required to furnish net worth of each 
client based on annual audited Financial 
statements in Form A. 
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7 Pre-Qualifying 

Requirements 
(PQR) 

8 4. The bidder should have requisite infrastructure 
and manpower for undertaking the job. 

Please clarify the 
meaning of "requisite" 
infrastructure and 
manpower for 
undertaking the job. 

The meaning of "requisite" infrastructure and 
manpower for undertaking the job implies that 
adequate manpower/infrastructure is available 
with Bidder so that the Implementation work of 
Ind AS in MMTC is not hampered due to 
shortage of manpower/required infrastructure. 

8 Time schedule 
and terms of 
Payment - 
Part A 

14 Preparation of detailed road map on Ind AS 
implementation; 
Identification of differences between Indian GAAP 
and IND AS; and Assist in Review and Preparation 
of Guidelines/policies based on Ind AS - to be 
completed within 30 days of the date of award 

This period is not 
sufficient to complete the 
work, we suggest that the 
time period be increased 
to 60 days. 

This time period of 30 days may be increased 
mutually depending on the work involved as 
may be assessed by MMTC. 

9 Form-B 25 Note 2: Documentary evidence required for this 
form 

We understand that CVs 
of the professionals will 
suffice the requirement 
of the documentary 
evidence for Form -B. 
Please clarify. 

The CVs of the professionals along with copies 
of certificates of professional qualification and 
experience with reference to IFRS/Ind AS will 
suffice the requirement of the documentary 
evidence for Form -B. 

10 Form C 26 Last paragraph : We are submitting Master Index of 
Bidding Document… 

Please clarify whether it 
refers to Bidding 
document or Tender 
Document. 

The "Master Index" here refers to Index of 
Tender Document given at Page no. 3 of Tender 
Document. 

   

26 We further confirm that, we have not been in 
negative list / blacklisted by any Public Sector 
Undertaking / Government Organization / MMTC 
Limited 

Please provide the list of 
undertakings which have 
been blacklisted by 
MMTC. Further for other 
organizations, we will 
confirm to the best of our 
knowledge. Please 
confirm that this will be 
sufficient compliance of 
this requirement. 

The same is required to be checked by Bidder 
at their end for giving undertaking. 

11 Scope of 
Work 

3 The guidelines on all Ind AS as applicable, the 
significant accounting policies, the presentation 
structure of financial statement and grouping of 
account codes with corresponding addition / 
modification on account codes in ERP system and 
suggest all other changes to make it Ind AS 
compliant. 

Present ERP structure The details of existing ERP structure is enclosed 
at Annexure-I. 
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12 Page 6, S. No. 

2 of scope of 
works 

  a) Identification of differences between the current 
accounting policies, systems and practices of the 
Company and the requirements of notified Ind AS 
and advise necessary modification/additions 
during the course of implementation.  
b) Preparation of approach paper on the changes 
required in the accounting policies, systems and 
practices. 

Please clarify whether the 
consultant is required to 
suggest only the changes 
in IT system. 
Please clarify whether the 
phrase “systems and 
practices” is referred for 
IT system. 

The phrase “current accounting policies, 
systems and practices of the Company” is 
referred to policies, systems & practice 
followed by company in respect of accounting 
related aspects. 

13 Page 6, S. No. 
3 of scope of 
works 

  Assist in preparing and review of 
The guidelines on all Ind AS as applicable, the 
significant accounting policies, the presentation 
structure of financial statement and grouping of 
account codes with corresponding addition / 
modification on account codes in ERP system and 
suggest all other changes to make it Ind AS 
compliant. The Consultant need to review our 
practice with reference to Fixed Assets 
(componentization, useful life and residual value) 
and Depreciation and suggest any changes to make 
it Ind AS compliant. Consultant will provide all 
other related clarifications/ guidance, inputs etc. as 
and when required, if any, for smooth 
implementation of Ind AS in MMTC. In executing 
the above work the consultant may be required to 
visit our Regional Offices and other offices for 
discussions or collection of data etc. 

Please clarify what 
guidelines needs to be 
prepared. 
 
Please clarify whether the 
componentization has 
already been done by the 
Company as required by 
Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or 
the consultant is required 
to carry out the exercise 
for the same. 
Please provide the list of 
locations (including the 
number of visits) where 
the consultant will be 
required to visit. 

The Consultant is required to provide 
guidelines to adopt most appropriate 
accounting policies taking into account the 
various options available under "Ind AS and 
nature of activities carried out by MMTC.              
As MMTC is a trading company, its fixed assets 
mainly consists of office building, staff quarters, 
office equipments, computers, furniture etc. 
Componentization as per Schedule II needs to 
be examined with reference to the provisions 
of Ind AS and suitable measures suggested.  
There are total 10 Regional Offices of MMTC of 
which location details are available in our 
website. The number of visits will be as 
required during process of implementation of 
Ind AS .However, in case of such visits 
travel/stay arrangement outside New Delhi will 
be made by MMTC. 
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14 Page 6, S. No. 

4 (b) and (c) 
of scope of 
works 

  Assist and guide in conversion of Ind AS compliant 
standalone quarterly financial results (three 
quarters) for 2015-16 for comparatives. Also assist 
and guide in conversion of standalone and 
consolidated financial statements for the year 
ending March 31, 2016 and related reconciliation 
statements and disclosure requirements under Ind 
AS and audit thereof. The Consultant would also be 
required to give a certificate towards Ind AS 
compliant financial statements. 
 
Preparation of Ind AS compliant standalone 
quarterly financial results (three quarters) for 
2016-17. Also, preparation of Ind AS compliant 
standalone and consolidated annual financial 
statements for the year ending March 31,2017 and 
related reconciliation statements, if any, and 
disclosure requirements under Ind AS and audit 
thereof. The Consultant would also be required to 
give a certificate towards Ind AS compliant financial 
statements. 
 
For the purpose of Consolidated financial 
statements the consultant would be required to 
advice, help, and devise any template for collection 
of data from Subsidiary / JVs/Associates to ensure 
consolidation as per Ind AS requirements 

We do not have practice 
to provide any certificate 
towards Ind AS compliant 
financial statements. 
Please clarify on any 
other alternative for the 
same. 
 
Please clarify the scope in 
respect of subsidiary, 
associate and joint 
ventures. Whether the 
consultant is required to 
carry out full scope 
review of group entities 
or only for assisting in 
group consolidation. 

The scope of work relating to subsidiaries/JV 
/Associates would only include assistance in 
preparation of templates required to collect 
data for consolidation purposes but not the 
preparation of their financial statements. 
Financial statements of the subsidiaries / 
associates / joint ventures will be provided to 
Consultant by MMTC and Consultant’s role will 
be limited to consolidated financial statements. 

15 Page 7, Part 
B: Training 

  Note: For Travel /Stay outside New Delhi for 
training etc., arrangements shall be made by 
MMTC as per entitlement applicable to the 
Statutory Auditors. 

Please clarify whether the 
travel as wells as 
boarding cost will be 
borne by MMTC. 
Also clarify whether the 
travel and boarding cost 
for other visits (as 
mentioned in S. No. 3 of 
scope of work) will also be 
borne by MMTC 

In case of such visits travel/stay arrangement 
outside New Delhi will be made by MMTC. 
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16 Page 7, Pre-

qualifying 
requirements 

  The bidder should have at least two qualified 
professionals with CA and /or CPA qualification 
along with experience of preparation / conversion 
/ implementation / auditing of financial statements 
under IFRS / IAS/ Ind AS. 

Please clarify what is 
required in support of 
experience. We propose 
to share the resume of 
the team members. 

The CVs of the professionals along with copies 
of certificates of professional qualification and 
experience with reference to IFRS/Ind AS will 
suffice the requirement of the documentary 
evidence for Form -B. 

17 Page 24, Form 
A 

  Notes: 
1 Bidder to submit copies of the work orders & 
completion certificate from client for the referred 
assignments 

There is no practice of 
completion certificate 
being given by client. We 
can share the copy of LOA 
only 

The certificate is required to be submitted by 
Consultant for our internal purposes only and 
not to any statutory authority. 

18 Page 25, Form 
B 

  Note: 
1 Bidders are required to furnish the complete and 
correct information required for evaluation of their 
bids. If any information furnished is found to be 
false/misleading/incomplete, the same shall be 
considered as adequate ground for rejection of the 
bids. 
2 Bidders are required to furnish only those 
credentials in the above prescribed format for 
which documentary evidence is available with 
them. MMTC reserves the right to seek additional 
information or ask for supporting documents from 
Bidders for verifying/evaluating their credentials 
whenever required. 

Please clarify what 
documentary evidence is 
required. We can only 
share the resume of the 
team members. 

The CVs of the professionals along with copies 
of certificates of professional qualification and 
experience with reference to IFRS/Ind AS will 
suffice the requirement of the documentary 
evidence for Form -B. 

19 Page 33   Form H Please clarify whether the 
Form H should be in 
favour of the person 
attending the technical 
and price bid opening. 

The Form H will be required to submit for 
person signing the documents, if signed by 
authorized person of bidder as well as for the 
person attending the bid opening. 

20 Page 14, S. 
No. 4 of Time 
Schedule And 
Terms of 
Payment 

  Preparation of standalone and consolidated annual 
financial statements for the year ending March 31, 
2017 and related reconciliation statements, if any, 
and disclosure requirements under Ind AS and 
audit thereof. 
a)For Regional Offices Audited financial Statements 
latest by 25.04.2017 
b) For Corporate Office, MMTC Standalone as well 
as Consolidated financial statements latest by 
15.05.2017 

Please clarify whether 
there would be separate 
financial statements for 
regional offices and 
corporate offices. 

The relevant details on this subject are 
available at Page no. 4 of Tender Document. 
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21 Page 6, S. No. 

5 of Scope of 
work 

  Post implementation Assistance 
The consultant shall provide necessary support for 
implementation of any changes required due to 
amendment/changes in Ind AS/companies Act till 
adoption of accounts in the AGM for FY 2016-17 
and compliance of any queries raised, if any, in the 
AGM. 

We understand that 
consultant is required to 
support for changes in Ind 
AS only. 

The consultant is required to provide necessary 
support for implementation of any changes 
required due to amendment/changes in Ind 
AS/Companies Act affecting financial 
statements. 

 








